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COVER
An Old Edinburgh Club Excursion at the foot of Blackfriars Street
From an original Photograph in the Edinburgh Room, Edinburgh City Libraries

Unfortunately there is no information about the photographer or provenance of this
fascinating photograph, which is recorded simply as a meeting of the Old Edinburgh
Club in 1913. The meeting is at the Cowgate end of Blackfriars Street, site of the
demolished Cardinal Beaton’s House, and the fashionable clothes and headgear fit
well with a visit by a group interested in the surviving relics of the Old Town at this
period. There is a problem, however, as there is no record of such an expedition by the
Old Edinburgh Club in 1913.

The Club was founded in January 1908 and published accounts of its lectures and
visits in the Annual Reports at the end of the published volumes of the Book of the Old
Edinburgh Club. The first article in the first volume contained the map of Edinburgh by
Bruce J. Home showing the remaining old buildings in the Old Town. The Club’s first
walk, in July 1908, followed the line of the old walls of the City, held jointly with the
Survey Section of the Edinburgh Photographic Society. In 1909 the Club organised
walks down the Royal Mile, first from Castlehill to Netherbow, then Netherbow to
Holyrood, then a visit to Holyrood itself, with a fourth expedition further afield to Coates
House and Donaldson’s Hospital. The first walk in 1910, for a group of around 100, was
on 11 June, from the West Port through the Grassmarket and up into Greyfriars
Churchyard, but the second walk, on 25 June, a continuation along the Cowgate, seems
the most likely to have been caught in our photograph. The walk was led by Bruce Home
and Robert T. Skinner, taking in the Magdalene Chapel, Tailors’ Hall and St Cecilia’s
Hall, and pausing at ‘the Beatons’ Palace’, before heading up St John Street to end at the
Canongate Churchyard. These early walks covered the Old Town fairly systematically,
and later visits were usually to specific buildings: the Castle, and Moubray House,
in 1910; the Cities and Town Planning Exhibition in the Outlook Tower, and Heriot’s
Hospital, in 1911; Duddingston, Castlehill to Netherbow (again), and Restalrig, in 1912.
The record is clear for 1913: only a visit in June to the Council Chambers, City Museum
and Lady Stair’s House (all in High Street/Lawnmarket), and an expedition to
Inveresk and Musselburgh in July. And there is no return to the Cowgate in the next few
years either.

So, we cannot be certain, but it seems likely that the photograph records the Old
Edinburgh Club’s summer parade along the Cowgate in June 1910, one of a series of
expeditions to familiarise the respectable members of the Club with the sites of vanished
buildings and the remnants of Old Edinburgh that still survived — and should be
preserved — amidst the squalor of the Old Town.

A.GF.

With permission of www.capitalcollections.org.uk,
Edinburgh Room, Central Library, Edinburgh
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FOREWORD

It gives me very great pleasure to introduce this
seventh volume of the New Series of The Book
of the Old Edinburgh Club, published in our
Centenary year.

The Club was established in 1908. The
anniversary has been commemorated in a variety of
ways throughout 2008. Our major centenary event,
the conference on the theme of ‘Edinburgh 1908-
2008: Once and Future Capital’ still lies ahead as I
write these words. We hope for a stimulating and
memorable day. The re-creation of the Club’s first
outing, an exploration of the line and surviving
portions of the walls of Edinburgh, has taken place,
exactly a century on from the very day in July 1908.
This re-visitation of past history, the brainchild
of Graeme Cruickshank and organised by Alan
McKinney, proved so popular that a second ‘re-
creation’ was arranged for the following day. But
time does not stand still. At the last minute, the City
Council’s closure of the Castle Esplanade and the
streets leading to it for pop concerts meant that some
quick adjustments had to be made for both days.
Nevertheless, for those of us who might have been
initially confused, in the context of Edinburgh Castle,
by the meaning and precise nature of a ‘rock’ concert,
it takes more than Boyzone and Girls Aloud to put us
off our stroke. Little did our predecessors in 1908
think of a world where such things could happen.
One wonders what impediments our successors in
2108 will have to contend with, should ever they seek
to re-visit our current celebrations! The cover
illustration of this volume of BOEC shows an early
Club outing to the Cowgate area of the city, probably
in 1910. The girls at the front left of this party are
giggling. Maybe they would have been more at
ease than some of us at the musical events of 2008.
Maybe, also, they snigger at the very thought that a
Club such as their parents belonged to could exist
even then, let alone survive healthily and happily
a century later.

Consideration has been given, in the run-up to our
celebrations, to the possibility of the Club’s erecting
a plaque of some kind at some suitable location, thus
doing honour both to the place or monument selected
and to the Club itself on the occasion of its Centenary.
An opportunity has now presented itself for the Club

to set up such a plaque that would draw attention both
to a significant and presently unmarked reminder of
the course of the Flodden Wall and to the Club’s role
in keeping alive such memorials of the vanished past
of Old Edinburgh, not least in our re-creation of the
Wall ‘ramble’ on 18 and 19 July. This is a project
that will take time and will require negotiation, but it
is an attractive one for the membership to look
forward to, and one that may serve to keep alive the
commemorative effort and events of 2008.

The final event of our Centenary year will be
the Civic Reception at the City Chambers on
2 December. The kindness of our patrons, the
Lord Provost, Magistrates and Council of the City
of Edinburgh, is greatly appreciated. They have
supported the Club loyally through the years, and
we look forward to a continuing fruitful relationship.
Our patrons have given their blessing to the Club’s
commissioning of a Presidential badge of office. We
have never had any symbol of authority, and I was
keen that something be produced to mark the
Centenary moment. A silver badge, bearing the City
arms and suspended on a ribbon of the City colours,
has accordingly been made. It seemed a nice touch to
commission a piece of silver that would bear the
marks for 2008, the 550th anniversary of the
establishment of hallmarking in Scotland. This badge
was worn for the first time on 4 July 2008 at the
unveiling of the Adam Smith statue in the High
Street. In due course, this fine statue by Alexander
Stoddart will feature in the Edinburgh volume of the
Public Sculpture of Britain series, an authoritative
undertaking by the Public Monuments and Sculpture
Association, the volumes of which are magnificently
published by Liverpool University Press. The
Centenary Committee and Council of the Club felt
that a commemorative Centenary venture of enduring
value would be to support the work of the editors of
the forthcoming Edinburgh volume in this splendid
series by a grant that would allow further research
towards the completion of this project and the
eagerly-awaited book. The £5000 that the Club has
given to PMSA will encourage progress on recording
the sculptural heritage of the City, whether that be in
the statues which stand in our streets and squares,
buildings or structures richly adorned by sculpture
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such as the Scott Monument or the National Portrait
Gallery, or merely those decorative tablets and
carved architectural details that the casual passer-by
so often fails to notice.

In celebrating its centenary in 2008 the Club has
been conscious that the year is also the 500th
anniversary of printing in Scotland. We have been
pleased to support an enterprise of the Scottish
Printing Archival Trust. This is a substantial “print
trail” leaflet guiding the visitor round the sites of
Edinburgh connected with the printing trade that
once made the city universally renowned as a centre
of excellence in the craft underpinning Edinburgh’s
equally distinguished reputation as a publishing
capital. This comprehensive guide to a sadly lost
world bears our Club logo. Our sponsorship serves
further to establish the OEC as a body concerned for
the heritage, traditions and the lives and livelihoods
of past citizens.

In the realm of printing and publishing, the Club’s
own enduring monument has long been The Book of
the OIld Edinburgh Club itself. We can, I think, be
proud of our publication record. On our formation,
the Club’s objects were stated as including ‘the
collection and authentication of oral and written
statements or documentary evidence relating to
Edinburgh; the gathering of existing traditions,
legends, and historical data; and the selection and
publication of material desirable for future reference’.
Since publication of the first volume in 1909,
we have held true to this aim. With this seventh
volume of the New Series we continue our long and
honourable tradition, and we offer these latest
historical contributions to the membership of the
Club, to the people of Edinburgh and Scotland and,
indeed, to scholars all over the world who may read
our publications in subscribing libraries. The present
volume continues the tradition of its predecessors
with its mix of scholarly articles both long and short,
and includes a fascinating re-examination of the
origins of the Club and Lord Rosebery’s part in
it by Owen Dudley Edwards. We hope that 2009
(centenary of the appearance of the first volume of
BOEC) will see the publication, as NS, Volume 8, of
the proceedings of the ‘Once and Future Capital’
conference. So, in a way, we shall have two centenary
volumes. That BOEC appears at all is due, of course,
to those who research and write for it. But the work
of Dr Andrew Fraser, our energetic and patient

Editor, and the Editorial Board who assist him ably in
his labours, is invaluable and we pay tribute to it now.
One of the objects of the Centenary Committee
over the last three years, and more generally of the
Council, has been to raise the profile of the Club and
to increase both membership and public awareness of
our activities. Our Secretary, Dr Alan Borthwick, has
been indefatigable in his efforts on behalf of the
Club. The workload has been particularly heavy in
the run-up to the conference. Colin Warwick has
contributed much in terms of website development
and advertising of lectures and events by means of
effective posters, handbills, and so on. This year a
number of articles and press reports has publicised
the past history and current activities of the Club. We
are also working to make stronger connections and to
forge new links, for example with the Edinburgh
World Heritage Trust, for I am convinced that the
Club can play a greater part in the life of the City
than it has yet done. It should be recorded that
the Centenary Committee has consisted of Alan
Borthwick and myself, Cecilia Cavaye, Tristram
Clarke, Graeme Cruickshank, Owen Dudley
Edwards, David Purdie and Joanna O’Rourke.

A great, though of course entirely coincidental and
indirect honour, is our Honorary Vice-President’s
appointment as a Knight of the Most Ancient
and Most Noble Order of the Thistle. Lord Cullen
of Whitekirk’s creation increases the Club’s
representation in the Thistle to two, our Honorary
President, the Earl of Wemyss and March (himself
almost as old as the Club!), being the senior Knight of
the Order. It is surely not bad for a local history society
to have among its Officers one eighth of the entire
complement of our greatest order of chivalry! It was an
enormous privilege to attend Douglas Cullen’s
installation. We offer him our warmest congratulations.

Retrospection at a centenary moment is entirely
normal, necessary and desirable. But so, equally,
is prospection. As I have said elsewhere, the best
centenary monument will be the Club’s continuing
and lively existence into the future. Let us all bear in
mind the final line of Stevenson’s moving poem of
home-thought from afar, where, exiled from the city
of his youth, he proclaims the rousing rallying-call of
loyalty: ‘Auld Reekie, still and on!’

Iain Gordon Brown,
President
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